UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 8
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In the Matter of:

COMPLAINT AND NOTICE OF
OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING

Farmers Union Oil Company, Ine.
Kenaston Anhydrous Plant
County Road 1

Kenmare, North Dakota 58746 DOCKET NO.: CAA-08-2010-0028

Respondent.
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INTRODUCTION (JURISDICTION)

1. Thi« civil administrative enforcement action is authorized by § 113(d)(1) of the

Clean Air Act (CAA), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)(1). The rules governing this procecding are the
“Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties,
Issuance of Compli e or Corrective Action Orders and the Revocation, Termination or
Suspension of Pern © 7 (Rules of Practice), 40 C.F.R. part 22 (Enclosure 1).

2. This authority was delegated by the Administrator to the Regional Administrators on
December 20, 1996 by EPA Delegation 7-6-A, and within Region 8§, was redelegated to the
Assistant Regional Adminsstrator, Office of Enforcement, Compliance and Environmental
Justice (ECEJ).

3. C. =z ad as set out and alleged specifically below, LPA alleges that Farmer« [ nion
Oil Company K n- »n Anhydrous Plant (“Respondent”) violated rules priomul  ted under

§ 112(r)7 of the ¢ .. A. Section 112(r)(7) of the CAA is codifted at 42 1. .5.C § . 2(r)7,
Accident Preventi n. The rules implementing the Accident Prevention Program are codified at
40 C.F.R. part 68.

4. Generall,. £ 7. alleg = Respondent violated the CAA by failing to meet the requirements
o, ~v C.1 .. part 68 with respect to requirements of a risk management program that must be
established and implemented at each affected stationary source. The C.AA authorizes the
assessment of a civil penalty for violations of § 112(r)(7) of the CAA, 42 L .S.C.

§ 7412(r)(7) and any rule promulgated under this section, Section 113(d)(1) of the CAA,

42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)(1).



APPLICABLE REGULATIONS AND DEFINITIONS

5. OnNovember 15, 1990, the President signed into law the CAA Amendments of 1990,
The Amendments added § 112(r) to the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r), which requires the
Administrator o1 1 PA to, among other things, promulgate regulations in order to prevent
accidental reie o .atain regulated substances.

6. Pursuant to § 112(r}(7) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r)(7), the owners and operators of
stationary sources are required to develop and implement a risk management plan (“RMP”) that
includes a hazard assessment, a prevention program, and an emergency response program.

7. The regulations at 40 C.F.R. part 68 set forth the requirements of ... manag .ment
program that must be established and implemenied at a stationary source th:  as mu re than a
threshold quantity of a regulated substance in a process. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. part 68, subparts
A and G, the risk management program is to be described in a RMP that must be submitted to
EPA.

8. Pursuant t¢ [ ."(r¥7) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. §7412(r)(7), and 40 "F.R. " " 68.10(u)}.
68.12, and 68.150  : RMP must be submitted to the EPA for all covered proce: »cs, »  au
owner or operato. »f a stationary source that has more than a threshold quantity ot a regulated
substance in a proce.  shall comply with the requirements of 40 C.F.R. part 68 (including, but
not limited to, submission of an RMP to EPA), no later than June 21, 1999, or three years after
the date on which . nilated substance is first listed under 40 C.F.R. § 68.130, or the date on
which a regulate:  ubstance is first present in a process above the threshold quantity, whichever
1s latest.

9. The regulations at 40 C.F.R. part 68 separate the covered processes into three categories,
designated as Program |, Program 2, and Program 3. A covered process is subject to Program 2
requirements, as per 40 C.F.R. § 68.10(c), if the process: a) does not meet the Program |
eligibility requirements set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 68.10(b); and b) ducs not meet the Program 3
eligibility requirements set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 68.10(d).

10. 4040 U 63.12(c) requires that the owner or operator of a stationary source with a
Program ? process undertake certain tasks in addition to the submission of an RMP, including,
but not limited to, development and implementation of a management system (pursuant to

40 C.F.R. § 68.15), conduct a hazard assessment (pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 68.20-68.42), and the
development and implementation of a prevention program (40 C.F.R. §§ 08.48-68.60).

11 Section 113(d) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d) and 40 C.F.R. part 19 state that the
Administrator may issue an administrative order against any person assessing a civil
administrative penalty of up to $37,500 per day of violation whenever, on the basis of any
available information, the Administrator finds that such person has violated or is violating any
requirement or prehibition of the CAA referenced therein, including § 112(r)(1) and/or
§112(1)7.



12, 40 C.F.R. § 68.3 defines “stationary source” in relevant part, as any buildings, structures,
equipment, installations, or substance emitting stationary activities which belong to the same
industrial group, which are located on one or more contiguous properties, which are under the
control of the same person (or persons under common control), and from which an accidental
release may occur.

[3. 40 C.F.R § 68.3 defines “threshold quantity” as the quantity specificd for regulated
substances pursuant to § 112(r)(5) of the Act as amended, listed in 40 C.F.R. § 68.130, and
determined to be present at a stationary source as specified in 40 C.F.R. § 68.115.

14, 40T FR  68.3 defines “regulated substance” as any substance listed pursuant to
§ LN el th \wiind0 CF.R. §68.130.

15, 40 C.F.R. § 68.3 defines “process” as any activity involving a regulated substance
including any use, storage, manufacturing, handling, or on-site movement of such substances, or
combination of these activities. For the purposes of this definition, any group of vesscls that are
interconnected, ¢ :parate vessels that are located such that a regulated substance could be
involved in a pc e ' release, shall be considered a single process.

[6. 40 C.F.R. ¢ 08.5 defines “covered process™ as a process that has a regulated ~ubstance
present in more than a threshold quantity as determined under 40 C.F.R. § 68.115.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

17. Respondent, Farmers Union Oil Company, Inc.(FUQ), is, and at all times relerred to
herein, was, a “person” within the meaning of § 302(e) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7602(¢).

18.  Respondent is the owner and/or operator of the Kenaston Anhydrous Plant located on
County Highway 1, Kenmare, North Dakota (the “Facility™).

19.  The Facilits is a “stationary source” as that term is defined at 40 C .F.... ~ "83.

20, Respondent uses, handles, and/or stores, anhydrous ammonia, which listed at
40 C.F.R. § 68.130 s a regulated substance as defined in § 112(r)(2) and (3} of the Clean Air
Actand 40 C.F.R. $ 68.3, in a process at its Facility.

21. T . thresholt | uantity for anhydrous ammonia is listed by I PAin ' CF.R. 38.15
Table 1. a<10.0 nds.

22. On March 23, 2010, an RMP was submitted for the Facility which specified that
Respondent had 133,360 pounds of anhydrous ammonia in a process at the Facility, and which
identified the anb irous ammonia process as Program 2.

23, T Tacility includes a Program 2 process as that term is described in
40 C.F.R.§68.1L,  because the process: a) does not meet the requirements set forth in
40 C.F.R. § 68.10(b) | »r a Program 1 process; b) does not meet the requirements set forth in



40 CF.R. § 68.10(d) for a Program 3 process; and c) is not subject to the OSHA process safety
management standard set forth in 29 C.F.R. § 1910.119.

24 On May 1 _J10, a representative of EPA conducted an inspection at the Facility to
determine compliance with § 112(r) of the CAA and 40 C.F.R. part 68.

COUNT 1

25.  Atthe time ¢i P A’s inspection, Respondent had not met the requirements of
40 C.F.R. part 68. Specifically, on the day of EPA’s inspection, Respondent:

* had not developed and implemented a management system as required by
40 C.FR. T 815

* hac nnt compiled and maintained up-to-date information, related to the regulated
sub 5t w s, processes, and equipment as required by 40 C.F.R. ¢ 68.48(u);

* had not ensured that the process is designed in compliance with recognized and generally
accepted good engineering practices as required by 40 C.F.R. § 68.48(b),

* had not performed a Process Hazard Review as required by 40 C.F.R. § 68.50:

* had not prepurea  rating procedures in accordance with 40 C.IF.K. § 68.52:

* had noi certitied that each employee presently operating a process. and each emplovee
newly assigned to a covered process, have been trained or tested competent in the
operating procedures provided in 40 C.F.R. § 68.52 that pertain to their duties as required
by 40 C.I'.12. § 68.54(a);

* had not impl mented a maintenance program as required by 40 C'.I' R. § 68.56;

* had not compi¢ted Compliance Audits as required by 40 C.F.R. § 68.58,;

* had not included procedures for informing the public and local emergency response
agencies about accidental releases in the facility emergency responsc plan as required by
40 CFR. 58.95(a)1)(1); and

* hadn tincluded documentation of proper first-aid and emergency medicu! ireatment
nec sary . u :ataccidental human exposures to the covered chemical in Jdie emergency
response plan as required by 40 C.F.R. § 68.95(a)(1)(1).

26.  Respondent’s failure to fully comply with the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 68.12(¢)
constitutes violation~ of  112(r)(7) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r)}(7). K. ipondent is therefore
subject to the assessment ot penalties under § 113(d) of the Act, 42 [".8.C

§ 7413(d).

PROPOSED CIVIL PENALTY ASSESSMENT

27. The proposed civil penalty has been determined in accordance with * 11. d) of the CAA,
42 U.S.C. § 7413( . This scction and 40 C.F.R. part 19 authorize the assessmc. 1+ a civil
penalty of upto ! ,000 per day for each violation occurring on or before January 30, 1997,
$27,000 per day for each violation occurring between January 31, 1997, and March 15, 2004;
$32,500 per day for each violation occurting between March 16, 2004, and January 12, 2009,
and $37,500 per = for each violation occurring after January 12, 2009, rursuant b the [ederal
Civil Penalties [nfl: -~ Adjustment Act of 1990, Pub. L. No. 101-410, § 4, 104 Stal. §90 (1990),



28 U.S.C. § 2461 {; - amended) for each violation of the implementing regulations associated
with the Accident Prevention Program codified at 40 C.F.R. part 68.

28.  In determining the amount of any penalty to be assessed, § 113(e) of the Clean Air Act,
42 US.C. § 7413(e), requires EPA to take into consideration the size of Respondent's business,
the economic impact of the proposed penalty on Respondent's business, Respondent's full
comphance histury ind good faith efforts to comply, the duration of the violations as established
by an' _redible evidence, payment by Respondent of penalties previously usse ' [ . the saume
Vv wwon. the ceonomic benefit of noncompliance, and the seriousne: * 1 che violations.

29.  Based upon the facts alleged in this Complaint and upon the statutory factors enumerated
above, as known to the Complainant at this time, Complainant proposed that Respondent be
assessed a penalty of $61,300 for the violation alleged in this Complaint. The Combined
Enforcement Policy for CAA § 112(r) Risk Management Program, dated August 15, 2001, and
Complainant’s Penalty Calculation Worksheet are enclosed (Enclosures 2 and 3).

NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR A HEARING

30. Responder © ;theright to a public hearing before an administrative law judger ALY w
disagree with (1) any fact stated (alleged) by EPA in the complaint, or (2) the appropria :ness of
the proposed penalty.

31.  To disagree with the complaint, and assert your right to a hearing, Respondent must file a
written answer (and one copy) with the Regional Hearing Clerk (1595 Wynkoop Strect; Denver,
Colorado 80202-1]1 1 within 30 days of receiving this complaint. The answer must clearly
admit, de- y or expl in the factual allegations of the complaint, the grounds sran ‘funse, the
facts you may dispute. and your specific request for a public hearing. See ¢ 77.1: “f the Rules
of Practice for a complele description of what must be in your answer.

FAILURE TO FILE AN ANSWER AND REQUEST FOR HEARING WITHIN 30
DAYS MAY WAIVE RESPONDENT’S RIGHT TO DISAGREE WITH THE
ALLEGATIONS OR PROPOSED PENALTY, AND RESULT IN A DEFAULT
JUDGMENT AND ASSESSMENT OF THE PENALTY PROPOSED IN THE
COMPLAINT.

QUICK RESOLUTION

32. Respondent may resolve this proceeding at any time by paying the specific penalty of
$61,300, proposed in this complaint. Such payment need not contain any response to, or
admission of, the allegations in the complaint. Such payment constitutes a waiver of
Respnndent’s right to contest the allegations and to appeal the final order. Sec § 22.18 of the
Rules of Practice « 1« a full explanation of the quick resolution process. This payment shall be
made bv remitting a cashier's or certified check, including the name and docket number of this
case, for he amo nt. payable to "Treasurer, United States of America," {(or be paid by one of the
other methods lizivd below) and sent as follows:



R lar Mail:
“* Environmental Protection Agency
Fine 5 and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
PO Box 979077
St. Louts, MO 63197-9000

(ransfers:
V ire transters must be sent directly to the Federal Reserve Bank in New
York City with the following information:
Federal Reserve Bank of New York
ABA =021030004
Account = 68010727
SWIFT address = FRNYUS33
12 Liberty Street
:w York NY 10045
I'ield Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read “D 6t~ 10727
I'nvironmental Protection Agency”

{*vernight Mail:
U.S. Jank
1005 Convention Plaza
Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL
St. Louis, MO 6310]
Contact Natalie Pearson
214-418-4087

ACH (also k  vn as REX or remittance express):
Automat d Clearinghouse (ACH) for recetving US currency
PNC Bank
808 17th Street, NW
Washington, DC 20074
Contact - Jesse White 301-887-6548
ABA 151036706
Transaction Code 22-checking
Environmental Protection Agency
Account 310006
CTX Format

On Linc Payment:
This payment option can be accessed from the information below:
WWwW.pay,gov
Enter sfol.] in the search field
Open form and complete required fields



A copy of the check, or notification that the payment has been made by one of the other
methods listed above, including proof of the date payment was made, shalil be sent to both:

D id Tobb, 8ENF-AT
[ » . "ARegion8
1935 % nkoop Street
Lenver, CO 80202-1129

and

T Artemis 8RC

L. 1al Hearing Clerk
U 1+ ARegion$

[395 Wynkoop Street
Denver, CO 80202-1129

SETTLEMENT NEGOTIATIONS

33. EPAenc » _ s discussing whether cases can be settled through informal scuiiement
conferences. If you would like to pursuc the possibility of settling this matter, orif . u have any
other legal questions, contact Marc Weiner, Esq., at 303-312-6913; weiner.marc w..p.  v; or, at
the address below:

viarc Weiner, ENF-L
‘nforcement Attorney
5. EPA Region 8
115 Wynkoop Street
anver, Colorado §0202-1129

Please note that calling the attorney or requesting a settlement conference does NOT delay
the running of the 30 day period for filing an answer and requesting a hearing.



In the Matter of:
Farmers Union Oil Company, [ac.
Kenaston Anhydrous Plant

UNITED STATES ENVIRO Ml ITAL
PROTECTION AGENCY, REGIOT . 8,
Complainant.

By DItcoharl7 ffemivro
Andrew M. Gaydosh '
Assistant Regional Administrator
Office of Enforcement, Compliance
and Environmental Justice

Date: o



In the Matter of:
Kenaston Anhydrous Plant

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

undersigned hereby certifies that the original and one copy of the COMPLAIN'T AND
NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING were hand-carried to the Regional Hearing
Clerk, EPA Region 8, 1595 Wynkoop Street; Denver, Colorado 80202-1129, and that a true copy
of the same was sent via Certified Mail, Postage Pre-Paid, to:

Kenaston Anhydrous Plant Facility

PO Box 726

Kenmare, ND 58746

Attn: Greg Westwood, General Manager

and

Farmers Union Oil Company
PO Box 726
Kenmare, ND 58746

-

Datv v lyn ~af.er
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i UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
¢ WASHINGTON, D.C. 20460

OFFICE OF
ENFORCEMENT AND
COMPUANCE AESURANCE

AG 15 20

SUBJECT: Combined Enforgement Policy for CAA Section 112(r) Risk Management -

FROM:

TO: : Regional Counsels, Regions I - X
Regional Enforcement Coordinators, Regions I - X
Regional Enforcement Division Directors, Regions I, IT, TV, VI, VIII

Over the past year, the Office of Regulatory Enforcement and Regional offices have
developed the attached Combined Enforcement Policy for violations of the Clean Air Act
Section 112(r}(7) Risk Management Program. The attached Combined Enforcement Policy
combines two policies, a penalty policy and enforcement response policy, that will govern civil
enforcement actions for violations of the risk management program as found in 40 CFR Part 68.
This Combined Enforcement Policy enumerates enforcement responses for violations of Part 68,
provides a basis to calculate penalty figures for internal negotiation for civil judicial enforcement
actions and for pleading administrative cases alleging violations of Part 68. The Combined
Enforcement Policy is effective immediately, but may be evaluated after one year to determine if
any modifications are needed.

Thank you for your assistance in developing the Combined Enforcement Policy. If you

have any questions please contact Leslie Oif in the RCRA Enforcement Division
at (202) 564-2291. '

Aftachment

Intemet Address (URL) « hitp://www.epa.gov
RecyciedRecyctable « Printad with Vegatable Ol Based Inks on Recycled Paper{Minimum 30% Fosiconsumar)




US EPA CAA 112(r) Penalty Calculation Worksheet
DETERMINATION OF THE GRAVITY COMPONENT
For Farmer’s Union Oil Company, Inc.
(Kenastor Anhydrous Plant)

On May 13. 2010, an CAA 112(r)(7) an EPA inspection was conducted at the
Farmer’s Union Qil Company, Inc. (FUOC) Kenaston Anhydrous Plant in Kenmare,
North Dakota. Potential violations were discovered and a penalty was calculated using
the Combined Enforcement Policy (CEP) for Clean Air Act (CAA) Section 112(r)(7) and
40 C.F.R. Part 68, Chemical Accident Prevention Provisions (August 15, 2001) and
adjusted per the Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule for violations
occurring after January 12, 2009.

The following is an overview of the proposed penalty amount. As per the CEP,
the proposed penalty ts the result of the following formula:

Penalty = [Economic Benefit + adjustment factors] -+ [Gravity Component + adjustment
factors]. The calculated penalty is then rounded to the nearest $100.

PENALTY CALCULATION

A. Economic Benefit:

Due to the variable cost of implementing the elements of the Risk Management Program
at this facility (internal cost vs. contractor costs, etc) economic benefit was not calculated.

B. Gravity Component = Seriousness + Duration + Size

1. Seriousness of Violation:

Table I
Part 68 Penalty Assessment Matrix for Violations which occurred
after June 22, 1999

Type of Facility
Program 3 Program 2 Program 1
Not less than $107.800 to |
: - $76.900 to
Major | $38,500 $32.010 $44.010

Extent of $44.000 to $32,000 to $18.700 to ‘
Deviation | " TCderate | ¢ 2010 $15.410 $7.700

$23,000 to $15,400 to $7,700 to
$9,900 $6.,600 $2.500 ‘

Minor




I1.

Extent of Deviation: Moderate Type of Facility: Program 2

Moderate: Cumulatively, the violations have a significant effect on the ability
of the facility to prevent or respond to releases through the development and
implementation of the RMP.

Based on relevant factors and circumstances, the mid-point of the Moderate-
Program 2 cell is used as a base number for Seriousness of Violation.

| Penalty | 523,705 ]

Adjustment:

Gravity Adjustment #1: Environmental Consequences

Moderate Impact: A release would likely have an effect on the
surrounding, non-sensitive ecosystem. Upward adjustment of up to 25%
(based on worst-case)*.

 Adjusted Penalty #1 | $23,705 x 1.25 = $29,631 |

*Note: Upward adjustments up to 50% are allowable for a Major Impact in terms of potential
environmental conseguences of the worst-case release

Duration of Violation

Table I

Duration of Violation

Months Penalty
0-12 $500/month
13-24 $1,000/month
25-36 $1,500/month ‘
| 37+ $2.000/month |

Duration: 2 months x $500/month = $1,000

['he most recent RMP submission was on March 23, 2010. EPA estimates the
violations have occurred at the facility at least since March 23, 2010. From
March 23, 2010 to the inspection date of May 13, 2010 = approximately 2
months.

| Penalty w/Duration | $29,631 + £1.000 = $30,631




1. Size of Violator

Size: Size of Violator exceeds 50% of total penalty = $30,631*

In Dun and Bradstreet, annual sales for the FUOC Kenmare facility are listed
at $17,000,000. This information is applied to annual sales for the Coulee
Anhydrous Plant and the Kenaston Anhydrous Plant because they are similar
operations to the Kenmare location. For the purposes of this calculation, the
estimate used by EPA is the total for three facilities at $51,000,000. (The size
of violator is based on the company’s entire operation; for the purposes of this
enforcement action, EPA uses total sales for three similar facilities owned by
the Respondent.)

The size of the violator is determined from an individual’s or company’s net worth.
In the case of a company with more than one facility, the size of the violator is
determined based on the company’s entire operation, not just the violating facility.
If the Region is unable to determine a company’s net worth. it may determine the
size of the violator based on gross revenues from all revenue sources during the
prior calendar year.

[ o Table I1]
Size of Violator Component
Net Worth Size Adjustment
Under 51,000,000 0 o
| 51,000,000 — §5,000,000 | §10,000
$3,000,001 - $20,0060,000 $20,000
| $20,000,001 - $40,000,000 | $35,000 -
| $40,000,001 -—$70,000,000 | $50,000 ———t— .
| 570,000,001 — $100,000,000 | $70,000 ==
| Cwver $100,000,001 £70,000 + $25,000 for every
additional $30,000,000
*Where the size of the violator figure (as determined in Tuble II) represents over 50% of the totai
penalty, the litigation team may. but need not, reduce the size of the violator figure (o un gmount egual
1o the rest of the penalty without the size of the violator fgure ineluded.
Penalty w/Size of Violator | 830,631 -+ $30,631 = $61,262

C. Final Adjustments to the Gravity Component

Degree of Cooperation (To be determined)

Mitigation based on this factor is limited to no more than 30% of the gravity
component.

Considerations:

e Cooperation during the EPA’s pre-filing investigation of the source’s
compliance status;

» Willingness of the violator to settle within 30 days: The gravity
component may be mitigated in the event that the violator agrees to, and
does in fact, resolve the matter within 30 days. The Region may, but
need not, extend this period by an additional 30 days if additional time is
needed to negotiate the terms of a Supplemental Environmental Project.



SUMMARY OF POTENTIAL VIOLATIONS:

Poten " | Violation Penalty
| Failure to Implement a Risk Management P Pian as required by 40 CFR Part68 | $61,300 |




